
UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTEcnON AGENCY 

MEGlON4 


ATLANfA FEDERAL CENTER 

61 FORsyn·! STREeT 


ATLANTA, GEOAGlA 30303·8000 


APR 102012 

CERTIFIED MAIL 
RE~RN B?Clill'IREQUE~JED 

Mr. Jeremy Nauert 
Direclor, Global HSE 
Colba"d, Inc. 
130 I Sand Hill Rond 
Enka. North Carolina 38728 

RE: 	 Colbond, Inc. 
Consent Agreement and Final Order 
Docket No. EPCRA·04.2012·2040(b) 

Dear Mr, Nauert: 

Enclosed please find an executed ropy of the Consent Agreement and final Order that resolves the 
Emergency Planning and Community Right·to·Know Act ort986 matter (Docket No. EPCRA·04·2012· 
2040(b)) involving Colbond, Inc. The CAFO was tiled with the Regional Hearing Clerk, as required by 
40 C.F.R. Part 22 and became effective on the date of the filing. 

Also enclosed, please find a copy of the "Notke of Securities and Exchange Commission RegisITMts' 
Duty to Disclose Environmental Legal Proceedings." This document puts you on notice of your 
potential duty to disclose to the Security and Exchange Commission any environmental enforcement 
actions taken by the Envirorunental ProtlX:tion Agency, 1f you have any questions with regards to the 
SEC's environmental disclosure requirements, you may refer to the ~ontact phone number at the bottom 
of the SEC Notice, 

If you have any questiQ~ please call Ms. Mary Beech at (404) 562·9669. 

Sincere ''/ AH-t 

on~~' 
,hief 

EPCRA Eniorcement Section 

Enctosures 

Interne! Addfftss (UFll) • http://W\"lwx.pa.gov 
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UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

RECION4 


:;:g
:z:,.,., ....IN THE MATTER OP, 
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Docket Number: EPCRA-04-2012-2040(b);;;:'" ",'"Colbond, Inc. 
C) c- ",n

",!2! 
Respondent. ~ 0",r-""' -< 

- ""0~ -- -"<<n 
CQl'\SENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDBR \0 

1. Nature gf the Action 

I. This is a civil penalty proceeding pursuant to Se.ction 325 of the Emergency 
Planning and Connnunity Right-to-Know Act (EPCRA), 42 u.s.c, § 11045, and pursuant to the 
Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties and 
the RevocationlTennination or Suspension of Permits (Consolidated Rules), codified at 40 
C.P.R. Part 22. Complainant is the Director of the Air, Pesti",'idcs and Toxies Management 
Division, Region 4. United Stat~ Enviromnental Protection Agency (EPA). Respondent is 
Colbond. Inc. 

2. The authority to take action under Section 325 ofEPCRA, 42 e.s.c' § 11045, is 
vested in the Administrator of EPA. The Administrator ofEPA hM delegated this authority 
under EPCRA to the Regional Administrarof1! by EPA Delegation 22-3-A, dated May 11, 1994. 
The Regional Administrator~ Region 4. has redeIcgated this authority to the Director, Air, 
Pesticides and Toxies Management Division, by EPA Region 4 Delegation 22~3-~ dated 
November 8, 1994. Pursuant to that delegation. the Director of the Air, Pesticides and Toxic5
Management Division has the authority to commence an enforcement action as the Compla1nant 
in this matter, 

3, Complainant and Respondent have conferred for the purpose of settlement 
pursuant to 40 C,P.R, § 22.l8 and desire to resolve this matter and settle the allegations 
described herein without a fonna] hearing. Therefore, without the taking of any evidence or 
testimony, the making of any argument, or the adjudication of any issue in this matter, and in 
accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 22. 13(b) and 22.18(b), this Cu""""t Agreement and Final Order 
(CAFO) will simultaneously commence and conclude this matter. 

II. Preliminary Statements 

4. Respondent is Colbond, Inc,. a corporation d01ng business in the state ofNorth 

Carolina. 


5. Respondent is a "person" ..<defined in Section 329(7) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. 
§ 1l049(7). 



6. Respondent owns and operates II "facility" as that teon is defined by Section 
329(4) of EPCRlI., 42 U.S.C. § 11049(4). 

7. Respondenl's facility is located at 1301 Sand Hill Road, Enka, North Carolina. 

Ill. EPA's Alletm}lon ofV.~~~~tion 

8. Sedion 312 of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C § 11022, and the regulations found.t 40 
C.F.R Part 370, provide that the owner or operator of a facility that is required to prepare or 
have available a Material Safety Data Sheet (MSDS) lOr hazardous chemicals under the 
Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1 970 (OSHA) and regulations promulgated under thut 
Act, shall submit to the Local Emergency Planning Committee (LEPC), the State Emergency 
Response Commission (SERe). and the fire department with jurisdiction over the facility on or 
before March 1 armuaUy, a completed emergency and hazardous chemjcal inventory form (Tier T 
or Tier U) as described in 40 e.ER. Part 3iO, containing the infonnation required by that part for 
hazardous chemicals pre..;:ellt .at the facility at anyone time in the calendar year in amounts equal 
to or greater than 10,000 pounds and contnining the infonnation required by that part for 
extremely h~dous substances (BHS) prc:sent at the facility at anyone lime in amounts equal to 
or greater than the threshold planning quantity (TPQ) or 500 pounds, whichever is less. 

9. At some time during the calendar years of 2010, 2009 and 2008, formaldehyde 
was present at the Colbond, Inc. facility in an amount equal to or greater than 500 pound.". 

1 0, Formaldehyde is an "extremely hazardous substance" as deHned under Section 
329(3) ofEPCRA, 42 U,S.c. § 11049(3), for which Respondent is required to prepare or have 
available an MSDS under OSHA at its facility, 

11. Respondent failed to submit a completed Emergency and Hazardous Chemical 
Inventory Form for fonnaldehyde to the SERC~ the LEPC, and fire department withjorisdiction 
over the facility for calendar years of201 0,2009 and 2008, by March I ofihe ibllowing year. 

12. EPA alleges that Respondent violated the ruporting requirements of Section 312 
of EPCRA, 42 USC § 11022, atthe Colbond,lnc. facility ror calendar years 01'2010, 2009 and 
2008. and is therefore subject to the assessment of penalties Wlder Section 325 of EPCRA. 42 
V.S,C. § 11045. 

13. Pursuant to Section 325(c) ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11045(c), and 40 CF.R. Part 
19, EPA may assess a penalty ofnot more than $37,500 for each violation of Section 312 that 
occurred after January 12, 2009. Each day a violation of Section 312 continues constitutes a 
separate violation. Civil penalties under Section 325(0) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § I 1045(c), may 
he assessed by Adminbirative Order. 

IV. Consent Agreetn@J 

14. For the purposcs of this CAFO, R""l"'ndent admits the jurisdictional allegatioll8 
set out above but neither admits nor denies the factual allegations set out above. 
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15. Respondent waives any right to contest the al1egations and its right to appeal thc 
proposed final order accompanying the Consent Agreement. 

16. Respondent consents to the assessment of and agrees to pay the civil penalty as 
set forth in this CAFD. 

17, Respondent certifies that as of the date of it;; execution ofthj;; CAFO~ it i;; in 
compliance with aU relevant requirements ofEPCRA at the laciJity. 

18. Compliance with this CAFO shall resolve the allegations of violations contained 
herein. This CAFO shall not otherwise aftect any liability of Respondent to the United States 
other than as expressed herein. Neither EPA nor Complainant waives any right to bring an 
enforcement a<.l1on against Respondent for a violation ofany federal or state statute. regulation 
or permit; to initiate an action for imminent and substantial endangerment; or to pursue criminal 
enforcement. 

19. Complainant and Respondent agree to settle this matter by their execution of this 
CAFO. The parties agree that the settlement oftbis matter is in the public interest and that this 
CAFO is consistent with the applicable requirements ofEPCRA, 

V. Final Order 

20. Respondent shall pay a civil penalty of THIRTEEN THOUSAND FOUR 
HUNDRED fIFTY FIVE DOLLARS ($13,455), tor the violations alleged in Section III. 
Payment ,hall be paid within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this CAFO. 

21. Respondent ,hall pay the penalty by forwarding a cashier's or certified check, 
payable to: l'Treasurer, United States of America," to one of the following addresses: 

BY MAIL BY OVERNIGHT 
US Environmental U.S. Bank 
Protection Agency Government Lockbox 979077 US 
Fines and Penalties EPA Fines. & Penalties 
Cincinnati Finance Center 1005 Convention Plaza 
P.O. Box 979077 	 SL-MO-C2-GI. 
St. Loui" 	MO 63197-9000 SI. [<Juis, 11.10 63101 


(314)418-1028 


The check shall r.terence on it> face the name and the Docket Number ofth. CAFO. 

22. At the time ofpayment, Respondent shall send a separate <-opy of the check. and a 
written statement that payment has been made in accordance with this CAPO, to the following 
porsuns at the following addresses: 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

Thereby certify that I have this day served a true and correct copy of the foregoing 

Consent Agreement and Final Order, In the Matter of, Coloond.1nc .. Docktj '!:'Lumher: EPCRA

04~"2_012:)J)40(h), on the parties listed below in the manner indicated: 

Caron B. Falconer (Via EPA's illternal mail) 
U.S. EPA, Region 4 
Air, Pesticides & TQxics Management Divisl10n 
61 Forsyth Street 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 

Robert Caplan (Via EPA ';;; lnternal mail) 
U.S. EPA, Region 4 
Office of Environmental Accountability 
61 Forsyth Stnc'et 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 

Jeremy Nauert 
Direanr, Global HSE 
Colbond, [ne. 
130 j Sand Hill Road 
Enka, North Carolina 28728 

(Via Certified Mail" Return R",-,,"pt 
Requested) 

Date; L/-Io.. /J. 
Palricia A. BUI[oe Regional Hearing Clerk 
United States Environmental 
Protection Agenc-y, Region 4 
Atlanta Federal Center 
61 Forsyth S_I, S.W. 
Atlanta, GA 30303 
(404) 562-95 II 


